
 

 
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday, February 10, 2022 at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Adoption of Agenda 

 
3. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2022.01.13 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
 

4. Delegations: 
a) RCMP – Q3 Community Policing Report  
b) Barbara Baxter – Ecotourism Concept  
c) Paul – Tough Country Presentation 
d) Open floor- Tough Country  
e) ORRSC – Road closure Bylaw # 262-2022 for road closure 
f) Open floor – ORRSC 
g) Letter from Janet & Darrell Edwards 

 
5. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) Add Kimberly Provencal to Glenwood Library council 
b) Results of Brainstorming with Hill Spring Council  
c) Draft Bylaw # 261-2022 Advertising Bylaw 
d) Draft Bylaw # 262-2022 Road Closure  

 
 

6. Councillor Reports: 
• Mayor Allred 
• Deputy Mayor Holthe 
• Councillor Law 
• Councillor Lybbert 
• Councillor Peterson 

 
7. CAO Report: 

a) Training / Meetings Attended  
b) Office Closures  
c) Projects 

-Cost to email bills instead of mail 
-Furnace at skating ring  
-Programable thermostat at Community Hall  

d) General update on Village  
 



Page 2 of 2 

8. Financial Reports: 
a) Accounts Payable Cheques for January 2022 (20220001 -20220014) 
b) Budget vs Actual Review January 2022 – to come Thursday  
c) Bank Reconciliation – December 2021  

 
9. Correspondence: 

a) 2021-10-14 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
b) 2022-01 Bulletin Alberta SW 
c) CMRSWA MINUTES Jan 6, 2022 
d) National Police Federation RCMP Information Package 
e) Policing 
f) Spring 2022 MLC Agenda 

 
10. Closed Meeting: 

a) Land, Legal or Labour Matters As per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act     
 

11. Adjournment: 
 

 





VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
January 13, 2022 Minutes 


 
The DRAFT Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the 
Glenwood Community Hall on January 13, 2022 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance: Mayor Linda Allred, Deputy Mayor Milo Holthe, Councillor Sandy 
Lybbert and Councillor Mark Peterson. Councillors Steven Law attended via zoom. 
 
Officials: Chief Administrative Officer Carrie Kinahan was in attendance.  


 
 


 


 
Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes January 13, 2022 Initials: Page 1 of 3 


 


 
1. Called to Order 
 
 
2. Agenda Adoption 
2022.01.001 
 
 
3. Minutes Adoption 
3 a) 2021.12.09 
2022.01.002 
 
 
4. Delegations: 
4 a) Tough Country – 
Postponed to Feb. 10 
meeting 
 
4 b) How can we help 
you- Presented by Leisa 
Olson & Wayne Layton  
 
2022.01.003 
 
 
5.Items for Discussion 
and or Action: 
5 a) Draft Bylaw # 260-
2022 – Bylaw 
Enforcement Officer 
2022.01.004 
 
 
 
2022.01.005 
 
 
 
2022.01.006 
 
 
 
2022.01.007 
 
 
 
5 b) Draft Bylaw # 245-
2022 – Bylaw Rates, 
Fees & Charges 
2022.01.008 
 
 
 


Mayor Allred called the January 13, 2022 Regular Council Meeting to 
order at 7:05 PM 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Holthe MOVED to adopt the agenda as amended, 
adding 5. e) & f). 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 2021.12.109 
Regular Council Meeting as presented. 


Carried 
 
 
 
No Resolution. 
 
 
 
No Resolution. 
 
Councillor Holthe MOVED to accept as information. 


Carried 
 


 
 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to approve first reading for Bylaw #260-
2022 Bylaw Enforcement Officer.  


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Holthe MOVED to approve SECOND Reading for Bylaw 
#260-2022 Bylaw Enforcement Officer. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Peterson MOVED to consider THIRD and Final Reading for 
Bylaw #260-2022 Bylaw Enforcement Officer. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Allred MOVED to approve THIRD and Final Reading for Bylaw 
#260-2022 Bylaw Enforcement Officer. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to approve first reading for Bylaw #245-
2022 Rates, Fees & Charges. With the following amendments on 
Rates, Fees & Charges which came into effect as of January 1, 2022. 
Adding Severability clause. 


Carried 
 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes January 13, 2022 Initials: Page 2 of 3 
 


2022.01.009 
 
 
 
2022.01.010 
 
 
 
2022.01.011 
 
 
 
5.c) Draft Bylaw # 261-
2022 – Advertising  
2022.01.012 
 
 
5.d) Draft Bylaw # 242-
2021 – Municipal Utility 
Bylaw  
 
5.e) Power poles along 
Lane closure   
 
5.f) Set up an 
intermunicipal meeting 
with Hill Spring council 
2022.01.013 
 
 
6. & 7. Council & CAO 
Reports 
Mayor Allred 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Holthe 
 
Councillor Law 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
Councillor Peterson 
 
CAO Report 
 
2022.01.014 
 
 
 
2022.01.015 
 
 
8. Financial Reports 
8 a) Accounts Payable 
Report  
8 b) Budget VS Actual 
Operating & Capital 
Reports  
8 c) Bank 
Reconciliations  
2022.01.016 
 
 


Deputy Mayor Holthe MOVED to approve SECOND Reading for Bylaw 
#245-2022 Rates, Fees & Charges. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Law MOVED to consider THIRD and Final Reading for 
#245-2022 Rates, Fees & Charges. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Peterson MOVED to approve THIRD and Final Reading for 
Bylaw #245-2022 Rates, Fees & Charges 


Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table to make changes 


Carried 
 
 


Bylaw # 242-2021 was passed at the December 6, 2021 public 
Hearing. 


 
 
No Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Allred MOVED to set up a date to brain storm with Hill Spring. 


Carried 
 
 
 


• Mayors & Reeves & Family & Community Support Services 
(FCSS) 
 


• Recreation board & Alberta South West 
 


• Chief Mountains Regional Solid Waste Authority (CMRSWA) 
 


• Chinook Foundation Seniors 
 


• Nothing to report 
 


• CAO Report presented as outlined in the agenda. 
 
Councillor Peterson MOVED to accept the Councillor & CAO reports 
as information. 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Holthe MOVED to have council collect remaining 
names and info for the village directory 


Carried 
 
 
 
 a) Accounts Payable Report for December (20210402 - 20210433).  
 b) Budget VS Actual Operating & Capital Expenses for December.  
 c) Bank reconciliations August, September, October & November.  
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the Financial Reports as 
information. 


Carried 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes January 13, 2022 Initials: Page 3 of 3 
 


9. Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2022.01.017 
 
 
 
2022.01.018 
 
10. Closed Meeting 
2022.01.019 
 
 
 
 
2022.01.020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
2022.01.021 
 


 
a) 2022-01 M&R Bulletin Alberta SW  
b) M&R December 3, 2021 Minutes 
c) Mayors and Reeves January 2022 
d) Chinook Arch Board Report – December 2, 2021 
e) Fire Turnout Gear Requestion 
f) AUMA 2022 
g) Programable thermostat at hall  
h) 2021 DA-001 1year temporary home Business- expires 


Feb. 7, 2022 
i) Leasing the Parlour- for up coming season 
j) Public Participation Pan – A03.2018 
k) Self Assessment Study? 
l)  CCES – Jan 6. Minutes  
m) 2021 Alberta SW Board Minutes 12-01 approved  
n) 2022-01 Bulletin Alberta SW 


 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the correspondence as 
information. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to go past 9:30PM.  


Carried 
 
Councillor Peterson MOVED to close the meeting to the public at 9:36 
PM to discuss Land, Legal or Labour Matters as per Section 24(b)(i) of 
the FOIP Act. 


Carried 
 


Councillor Lybbert MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 9:50 
PM. 


Carried 
 
The Regular Council Meeting resumed at 9:55 PM allowing for the 
public to rejoin the meeting. 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 10:40 PM. 


Carried 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
_____________________________________________ 


Chief Administrative Officer 
  


 








CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
% Change 


2017 - 2021
% Change 


2020 - 2021
Avg File +/- 


per Year


     Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 1 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Robbery 0 2 2 6 0 N/A -100% 0.4


     Sexual Assaults 2 2 1 3 2 0% -33% 0.1


     Other Sexual Offences 0 3 0 3 0 N/A -100% 0.0


     Assault 21 47 38 55 30 43% -45% 2.6


     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 2 0 2 2 N/A 0% 0.4


     Extortion 0 3 0 0 1 N/A N/A -0.1


     Criminal Harassment 0 1 3 1 3 N/A 200% 0.6


     Uttering Threats 4 9 9 8 9 125% 13% 0.9


TOTAL PERSONS 27 69 54 78 47 74% -40% 4.9


     Break & Enter 3 12 11 4 7 133% 75% 0.0


     Theft of Motor Vehicle 6 9 3 0 2 -67% N/A -1.7


     Theft Over $5,000 1 1 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3


     Theft Under $5,000 34 24 28 15 29 -15% 93% -1.9


     Possn Stn Goods 3 5 4 1 3 0% 200% -0.4


     Fraud 13 12 10 6 11 -15% 83% -1.0


     Arson 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2


     Mischief - Damage To Property 0 0 13 9 6 N/A -33% 2.1


     Mischief - Other 21 29 40 39 27 29% -31% 2.2


TOTAL PROPERTY 82 92 109 74 85 4% 15% -1.2


     Offensive Weapons 1 7 3 11 10 900% -9% 2.2


     Disturbing the peace 24 33 50 40 32 33% -20% 2.3


     Fail to Comply & Breaches 71 100 110 44 53 -25% 20% -9.2


     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 12 13 7 24 17 42% -29% 2.1


TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 108 153 170 119 112 4% -6% -2.6


TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 217 314 333 271 244 12% -10% 1.1


January 6, 2022


Q3: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"


Cardston Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)







CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
% Change 


2017 - 2021
% Change 


2020 - 2021
Avg File +/- 


per Year


     Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Drug Enforcement - Possession 1 4 5 17 16 1500% -6% 4.3


     Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 4 3 2 5 6 50% 20% 0.6


     Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


Total Drugs 5 7 7 22 22 340% 0% 4.9


     Cannabis Enforcement 0 3 0 0 0 N/A N/A -0.3


     Federal - General 2 1 0 3 1 -50% -67% 0.0


TOTAL FEDERAL 7 11 7 25 23 229% -8% 4.6


     Liquor Act 15 25 37 56 26 73% -54% 5.3


     Cannabis Act 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Mental Health Act 10 6 26 19 15 50% -21% 2.3


     Other Provincial Stats 20 16 23 46 17 -15% -63% 2.4


Total Provincial Stats 45 47 86 121 58 29% -52% 10.0


     Municipal By-laws Traffic 0 1 0 0 0 N/A N/A -0.1


     Municipal By-laws 4 5 2 4 3 -25% -25% -0.3


Total Municipal 4 6 2 4 3 -25% -25% -0.4


     Fatals 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1


     Injury MVC 1 4 5 1 2 100% 100% -0.1


     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 71 45 49 40 42 -41% 5% -6.3


     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 6 4 4 5 0 -100% -100% -1.1


TOTAL MVC 78 53 58 47 44 -44% -6% -7.4


     Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1


     Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


Total Provincial Traffic 119 166 132 139 195 64% 40% 12.5


Other Traffic 1 13 15 1 0 -100% -100% -1.4


Criminal Code Traffic 9 14 25 16 12 33% -25% 0.8


Common Police Activities


     False Alarms 28 3 9 9 8 -71% -11% -3.4


     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 22 18 10 19 20 -9% 5% -0.3


     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 19 22 14 22 20 5% -9% 0.2


     Persons Reported Missing 7 2 8 7 7 0% 0% 0.5


     Search Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0


     Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) 14 28 17 28 12 -14% -57% -0.4


     Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 2 N/A N/A 0.4


All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" January 6, 2022


Q3: 2017 - 2021


Cardston Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)








Please wait... 
  
If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF 
viewer may not be able to display this type of document. 
  
You can upgrade to the latest version of Adobe Reader for Windows®, Mac, or Linux® by 
visiting  http://www.adobe.com/go/reader_download. 
  
For more assistance with Adobe Reader visit  http://www.adobe.com/go/acrreader. 
  
Windows is either a registered trademark or a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Mac is a trademark 
of Apple Inc., registered in the United States and other countries. Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other 
countries.





		Untitled



.\canada_blk.jpg

Symbol of the Government of Canada

Page  of 

Gurung, Pratiksha

11.0.1.20140715.1.911166

RCMP

Provincial Policing Report 

Detachment 

Detachment Commander

Quarter

Date of Report

Community Consultations

Date

Attendee(s)

Notes

Community Priorities

Crime Statistics1

The following table provides policing statistics on actual offences within the periods listed. Please see Appendix

for additional information and a five-year comparison.

October - December

January - December

Category

2020

2021

% Change Year-over-Year

2020

2021

% Change Year-over-Year

Total Criminal Code

Persons Crime

Property Crime

Other Criminal Code

Traffic Offences

Criminal Code Traffic

Provincial Code Traffic

Other Traffic

CDSA Offences

Other Federal Acts

Other Provincial Acts

Municipal By-Laws

Motor Vehicle Collisions

 1 Data extracted from a live database (PROS) and is subject to change over time.

Trends/Points of Interest

Provincial Police Service Composition2

Staffing Category

Established Positions

Working

Soft Vacancies3

Hard Vacancies4

Police Officers

Detachment Support

 2 Data extracted on December 31st, 2021 and is subject to change over time.  3 Soft Vacancies are positions that are filled but vacant due to maternity/paternity leave, medical leave, etc. and are still included in the overall FTE count.  4 Hard Vacancies reflect positions that do not have an employee attached and need to be filled.

Comments

Quarterly Financial Drivers

Priority 1

Priority 2

Priority 3

		CurrentPage: 

		PageCount: 

		Cell2: Cardston

		Cell2: Sgt Robert Wright

		Cell2: Q3

		Cell2: 2022/02/01

		Cell2: Traffic Safety - Dangerous, Distracted and Impaired driving 

		Cell2: Crime Reduction - Property Crime / Drug Offences 

		Cell2: Community Engagement / Police visibility 

		Cell2: 271

		Cell2: 78

		Cell2: 74

		Cell2: 119

		Cell2: 16

		Cell2: 139

		Cell2: 1

		Cell2: 22

		Cell2: 25

		Cell2: 121

		Cell2: 4

		Cell2: 47

		Cell2: 9

		Cell2: 2

		Cell1: 

		Cell3: 244

		Cell3: 47

		Cell3: 85

		Cell3: 112

		Cell3: 12

		Cell3: 195

		Cell3: 0

		Cell3: 22

		Cell3: 23

		Cell3: 58

		Cell3: 3

		Cell3: 44

		Cell3: 9

		Cell3: 1

		Delete: 

		Add: 

		Cell4: Measures and Targets for the year:1) Increase IRS (Impaired Driving Charges to 40 per year; To date the target has been surpassed and will exceed 40 charges on the year. This number will continue to grow as the issue is given priority and as new members are trained to detect and investigate Impaired driving related offenses. 2) Rural Traffic operations 24 per year; To date 23 rural traffic operations have been completed which include focus areas such as school zones, distracted drivers, Impaired driving, speeding and aggressive / dangerous driving. Operations take place in every community in Cardston Country with different focuses dependent on the day, area and time.3) Traffic Tickets 250 per year; RCMP have already issued in excess of 460 traffic violations for a multitude of offenses such as speeding, dangerous driving and driving without a license. 

		Cell4: 1) Cardston Down Town Foot  Patrols 360 / yr; The target number will not be met this year however Police continue to have a consistent presence in the Cardston business core however it is just not on foot. A Community Police Officer secondment is being trialled right now to see if this is more visible and effective. Results and the specific mandate of the secondment will be a topic of discussion during the upcoming meetings in relation to the 2022/23 Annual Performance Plan.2) Breach charges in Cardston down town; Breach charges continue to be an effective tool to remove prolific offenders from known problem areas. RCMP have sent 71 charges before the courts this quarter and 181 on the year so far. Very few convictions result from these charges which becomes problematic when trying to use them as a deterrent to future crime.3) GLCA and CDSA  50 / yr: RCMP have laid another 22 charges this quarter again surpassing the target goal for this initiative. Most CDSA charges for simple possession are being withdrawn by the courts as the focus turns to treating the offender as opposed to convicting them of criminal wrong doing. Drug overdoses in our vulnerable population continues to be an issue; trafficking charges for fentanyl and methamphetamine also make up a portion of the total number of charges.4) Rural Visibility Patrols 120: Almost 400 patrols have been completed to date. The purpose of these patrols is to have a continued presence in the smaller communities that typically enjoy a much lower call volume then the larger centers. On average there is one - two patrols everyday through every community we serve both day and night.

		Cell4: RCMP recently completed a clothing drive in support of those in need. The local Police often deal with those who are in need of warm or clean clothes especially during the winter months. This gives Police the opportunity to hand out warm or clean clothes to those that they encounter living on the streets or in other high risk situations. RCMP gathered and participated with the Royal Canadian Legion in this years Remembrance Day services (Where they were requested to attend) however the events were largely scaled down from previous years due to the ongoing pandemic. Local media releases continue to be made through the Temple City Star on a bi weekly basis; social media accounts for the Provincial RCMP have started to appear the most recent being a TikTok account. Community Town Halls will be held in March to engage the public on the upcoming years Annual Performance Plan priorities, exact dates and times to be announced.

		Cell4: -10%

		Cell4: -40%

		Cell4: 15%

		Cell4: -6%

		Cell4: -25%

		Cell4: 40%

		Cell4: -100%

		Cell4: 0%

		Cell4: -8%

		Cell4: -52%

		Cell4: -25%

		Cell4: -6%

		Cell4: 0

		Cell4: 1

		Cell5: 1,046

		Cell5: 289

		Cell5: 366

		Cell5: 391

		Cell5: 85

		Cell5: 650

		Cell5: 18

		Cell5: 59

		Cell5: 71

		Cell5: 380

		Cell5: 25

		Cell5: 147

		Cell5: 0

		Cell5: 0

		Cell6: 1,030

		Cell6: 249

		Cell6: 398

		Cell6: 383

		Cell6: 60

		Cell6: 921

		Cell6: 2

		Cell6: 73

		Cell6: 83

		Cell6: 307

		Cell6: 24

		Cell6: 140

		Cell7: -2%

		Cell7: -14%

		Cell7: 9%

		Cell7: -2%

		Cell7: -29%

		Cell7: 42%

		Cell7: -89%

		Cell7: 24%

		Cell7: 17%

		Cell7: -19%

		Cell7: -4%

		Cell7: -5%

		TextField1: Traffic offenses continue to see the majority of the largest swing in %. This is largely due to the Provincial IRS system that has come into play and will continue to be developed and deployed over the next 12 months. The key take away is that enforcement is still being completed and has increased in line with the Priority issues on the APP.Drug charges are again on the incline as it also appears as a priority issue on the APP. RCMP have specifically targeted known drug dealers and properties because of their close relationship to the over all crime statistics.

		TextField1: Police Officers – The 9 established positions are currently filled. Detachment Support – The 2 established support positions are currently filled however one is on long term leave.










 


1 of 2 
 


 


 


 


 


2022, 02, 01 


Sgt Robert Wright 
Detachment Commander 
Cardston, Alberta 
 
Dear Mayor, Reeve and Councillors 
 
Please find attached the quarterly Community Policing Report that serves to provide a quarterly 
snapshot of the human resources, financial data and crime statistics for the Cardston 
Detachment area. This report covers the October 1st to December 31st, 2021 reporting period. 
As part of our continued commitment to engage with the communities we serve in enhancing 
service delivery, this report is a key tool to address any questions or concerns you may have.  


As we embark on 2022, the safety and security of Albertans remains to be the top priority for 
the Alberta RCMP. The inclusion of Body Worn Cameras on our front line members supports 
our long-standing commitment towards enhancing public safety and trust with the 
communities we serve by increasing the transparency of police interactions with citizens. Later 
this spring, a number of Body Worn Cameras will be piloted in locations across Alberta to 
inform the success of the provincial rollout that is aimed to follow in the 2022/23 fiscal year. 
Front-line officers at detachments in Grande Prairie, Parkland, St. Paul, and Gleichen will take 
part in the pilot. These locations were strategically chosen given their high volumes of calls and 
varying line speeds. This pilot will allow us to see how the system performs and make 
adjustments to ensure it meets our needs before the full roll-out. 


We are also getting the process underway for multi-year financial plans for MPSA and PPSA 
contracts. If you are policed under a MPSA, you will be invited to an information session and I 
will be working with you to develop the multi-year financial plan for your community. If you are 
policed under the Provincial Police Service (communities under 5,000), the Alberta RCMP will 
be working directly with the Province of Alberta to develop the multi-year financial plan.  


In addition, the Joint Business Plan is being finalized collaboratively by the Alberta RCMP and 
the Province of Alberta. The development of this plan has taken into consideration and input 
from communities as reflected in the Interim Police Advisory Board (PAB) report.  


 


 







 


2 of 2 


 


 


 


While this broader plan is nearing completion and is reflective of provincial policing priorities – 
in the coming weeks, detachment commanders will be engaging with communities to identify 
and discuss local policing priorities as they develop their detachment annual performance 
plans.  


The attached reporting along with your valued feedback and guidance will support the 
reinforcement of your policing priorities, and help ensure we are meeting your community 
needs on an ongoing basis. As the Chief of Police for your community, please feel free to 
contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
Sgt Robert Wright 
Detachment Commander 
Cardston, Alberta 
 

















 


 


1 
 


 
  


 
 


Prepared for Glenwood Council 


MARCH 9  
 


 
 


Tough Country Communications Ltd. 
Prepared by: Paul McLean 
 


Report to Council 







 


 


2 
 


Executive Summary 


Tough Country Communications Ltd. 
 
Tough Country Communications is a local internet service provider, established in 2008. 
During the last 5 years, Tough Country has grown 120% and now services over 2100 
customers. The service area covers from Fort Macleod, Alberta to Cranbrook, BC., south to the 
United States border and north to Radium, BC. Tough Country maintains over 80 distribution 
points throughout the network and has performed over 1.6 million dollars in new 
infrastructure spending on the network in the last 5 years. 
 
Tough Country offers services to: 
 


• Residential 
- Rural, Town and Villages 


• Resort/Recreation 
- Leading provider in RV and Recreational offering in the service area 


• Commercial and Industrial  
- Large and small scale commercial and industrial clients. 24hr support, custom 


service offerings (i.e. Enmax, TransAlta, Saputo, Rigstar) 
 
In response to the increasing demand for bandwidth, Tough Country has now introduced the 
new “Vmax” internet packages at all our fibre fed towers. With the introduction of Vmax we 
exceed the 50/10mbps objectives of the CRTC at many of our distribution locations. 
 
We would like the opportunity to offer the Vmax services in Glenwood as well as discuss fibre 
to the home opportunities for the village. Currently, we provide services from a location on 
the Saputo facilities in Glenwood through a wireless link to other towers within our network. 
In order to expand services to offer the Vmax packages within Glenwood we require a direct 
fibre link within the community and supporting infrastructure to accomplish the goals for 
improving internet connectivity within the village. 
 







 


 


3 
 


Project Plan 
 
The table outlines the steps that need to be accomplished in order to move forward with a 
plan to accomplish our internet objective within the village: 
 
Point of Presence Approval Obtain approval from Council to establish a 


Point of Presence (POP) in the Glenwood 
Library. Currently there is access to the Axia 
fibre in the library that would facilitate this 
request. We have examined the location with 
Village Administration and believe that we can 
occupy a small area within the library that 
would facilitate this request. 
 


Distribution Site Approval Approval by Council for construction of a 
monopole or telephone pole like structure 
behind the library in order to facilitate both a 
distribution point and a link to the Saputo 
location where Tough Country currently 
distributes the internet. Photos have been 
attached to this document depicting examples 
of monopoles that could be utilized. Further 
discussion with Administration would be done 
with regards to placement, not to impede 
future opportunities for the village.  
 


Review of Fibre Plan Review of Fibre to the Premises design 
document for Glenwood prepared by Tough 
Country Communications and look at funding 
options to fulfill a plan of delivering fibre to the 
premises in Glenwood. Current grant 
opportunity being offered is the CRTC “Closing 
the Divide” Grant Submission. Due March 27, 
2020 
 







 


 


4 
 


Construction of Distribution Site Spring/Summer of 2020, construct distribution 
site at the library. Tough Country 
Communications would cover all costs 
pertaining to the construction of the 
distribution site. 
 


Offer Vmax Services to Village 
Businesses and Residents 


Spring/Summer of 2020 roll out Vmax 
50/20mbps and 30/10mbps package offerings 
to residents in the village. All plans include 
unlimited data and do not require contracts. 
 


Continue Fibre to the Premises 
initiatives 


Contingent on funding availability through 
various levels of government and industry.  


 
 


Understanding Vmax  
 
The following illustration demonstrates the direct connection from the end user to the 
internet. Vmax is delivered through a wireless connection opposed to a direct fibre to the 
home connection, however speed and reliability are significantly improved as the signal is 
direct to the internet opposed to multiple links to reach the internet. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


5 
 


The attached map depicts the proposed Vmax zone for Glenwood. 30mbps and 50mbps high 
speed internet packages are available.  
 
In comparison, the current offering within Glenwood by Tough Country Communications is up 
to 15mpbs. 
 
With the new investment in Glenwood, Tough Country and the introduction of Vmax and 
eventually fibre, we can provide virtually unlimited internet speeds to the community. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 







 


 


6 
 


 
Tower Examples:  
 
The following photos depict typical monopole structures. Poles come in various lengths 
depending on the intended purpose 
 


  
 
 
Tough Country would further consult with Glenwood Administration on the appropriate 
structure and placement. 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


7 
 


 


Fibre to the Home 
Tough Country Communications has identified Glenwood as an eligible community for funding 
under the Federal Funding criteria set forth by CRTC “Closing the Divide” grant program. 
Tough Country proposes to examine this program as well as other funding options to facilitate 
the objective of delivering fibre to the village.  
 
Tough Country would also provide our own financial contribution and explore municipal 
funding opportunities in order to attract the federal funding being offered by CRTC and to 
demonstrate municipal and industry cooperation in delivering on the project.    
 
Tough Country Communications has commissioned a 
study of the financial investment that would be 
required to roll out fibre to the premises within 
Glenwood. The attached chart provides details on the 
estimated cost. 
 


 
 


Fibre to the Premises - Material and Labour Amount 
      


Outside Plant Cost Summary     
OSP Construction Material    $                         81,782  
OSP Opti-Tap Material    $                         16,618  
POP & Community Cabinet Infrastructure    $                                 -    
OSP Labour & Professional Services   $                       453,030  
  SubTotal OSP  $                       551,430  
  Contingency (5%)  $                         22,652  


  
Total OSP with 


Contingency  $                       574,082  
  PST (7%)                               8,474  
  GST (5%)  $                         28,704  


  
Total OSP Including 


Applicable Taxes  $                       611,259  
      


  
Total Capital Cost OSP 


with Contingency $                       611,259  


  
Total Number of 
Premises Passed                                  131 


  
Core Network Costs 


Per Premise $                           4,666  







 


 


8 
 


 


In Conclusion  
 
Tough Country Communications appreciates the opportunity to present to council our plans 
for the village. We believe that the proposed investments in offering Vmax internet in 
Glenwood will improve the access to the internet for the current residents of the community 
and attract further opportunities for the village. Furthermore, the focus of moving forward on 
the future installation of fibre to the homes and businesses within the village will enhance 
future opportunities for the village.  
 
 
 


 


 


 


“The new digital economy, equalizes access to 
information for everyone, no matter where you live.” 








 


 
 


NOTICE TO ADJACENT LANDOWNERS 
REGARDING THE PROCESS OF PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE  


ON LANDS LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS: 
PLAN 122AY 
ALL THAT PORTION OF UNNAMED STREET LYING BETWEEN BLOCK 21 & 22 AND FORMING A PART OF 
SUBDIVISION PLAN _____ 
CONTAINING 0.186 HECTARES (0.46 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 
 
RE: RESCIND PROPOSED BYLAW NO. 259-2021  
GIVE 1st READING & PUBLIC HEARING FOR REPLACEMENT BYLAW NO. 262-2022 


 


 
It has come to the Village’s attention that Alberta Transportation has a process for road closures which 
requires a quorum of Councilors who heard the 1st reading of a proposed road closure to be present at 
the Public Hearing. 


Given this new information and the results of the municipal election of October 2021, the Village will be 
undertaking a new bylaw process to meet the legislated requirements.  


Please be advised no changes have occurred between proposed Road Closure Bylaw 259-2021 and 
proposed Road Closure Bylaw 262-2022. The recessed public hearing for Bylaw 259-2021 will be closed 
and the bylaw will be rescinded, and a new bylaw (Bylaw 262-2022) will be put forward in its place.  


Notice of the public hearings is found on the reverse page. 


 


 


 
Carrie Kinahan 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Village of Glenwood 
59 Main Avenue 
Glenwood AB   T0K 2R0 
 
 
January 20, 2022 
 
 
Encl. 
 
Notice of Public Hearings 
 
  







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS - VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 


PROPOSED BYLAW No. 259-2021  
PUBLIC HEARING IS RECONVENED FOR THE PURPOSES OF CLOSING 


PROPOSED BYLAW No. 262-2022 
PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE 


 
Date: February 10, 2022 


Time: 7:00 p.m. 
Village of Glenwood Community Hall 


 
PURSUANT to section 22 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter M-26, as amended, 
notice is hereby given that the Council of the Village of Glenwood will consider a bylaw to close a portion of an unnamed 
roadway, depicted in hatching in the sketch below and legally described as: 


PLAN 1222AY 
ALL THAT PORTION OF UNNAMED STREET LYING BETWEEN BLOCK 21 & 22 AND FORMING A PART OF 
SUBDIVISION PLAN ________ 
CONTAINING 0.186 HECTARES (0.46 ACRES) MORE OR LESS 
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
DATED at the Village of Glenwood in the province of Alberta this 20 day of January, 2022. 
 


Carrie Kinahan 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Village of Glenwood 
59 Main Ave. 
Glenwood AB.  T0K 2R0 


 


THE PURPOSE of this bylaw is to close a 
portion of undeveloped street that is no 
longer required for public travel and create 
separate title to such lands in the name of the 
municipality for subsequent disposal of the 
land through consolidation with adjacent 
land. 


THEREFORE, TAKE NOTICE THAT the 
public hearing to consider the proposed 
Bylaw No. 262-2022 will be held in the 
Village of Glenwood Community Hall at 7:00 
p.m. on February 10th, 2022 (90 Main Ave. 
NW, Glenwood). 


AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT 
anyone wishing to make a presentation 
regarding the proposed bylaw should, in 
writing, notify the Village of Glenwood no 
later than 4:00 p.m., on February 9th, 2022. 
Verbal presentations may also be made to 
Council at the Public Hearing. 


AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT a 
copy of the proposed bylaw may be reviewed 
at the Village of Glenwood office during 
normal business hours. 


 








1 
AV


E 
W


M
AI


N
 A


VE


1 ST N


CENTRE ST


500 Metres 150100 200


OLDMAN  RIVER  REGIONAL  SERVICES COMMISSION


PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE
SCHEDULE 'A'


PLAN 1222AY
ALL THAT PORTION OF UNNAMED STREET LYING 


BETWEEN BLOCK 21 & 22 AND FORMING A PART OF SUBDIVISION PLAN ________
CONTAINING 0.186 HECTARES (0.46 ACRES) MORE OR LESS
WITHIN SW 1/4 SEC 12, TWP 5, RGE 27, W 4 M
MUNICIPALITY: VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2021


MAP PREPARED BY:
OLDMAN R IVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION


3105 16th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA   T1H 5E8
TEL. 403-329-1344


"NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ERRORS OR OMISSIONS"


Bylaw #:                              
Date:                                   


Aerial Photo Date: April 19, 2017



AutoCAD SHX Text

20



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

29



AutoCAD SHX Text

28



AutoCAD SHX Text

30



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

22



AutoCAD SHX Text

23



AutoCAD SHX Text

21



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

7



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

9



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

1222AY



AutoCAD SHX Text

1213188



AutoCAD SHX Text

0310681



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

21



AutoCAD SHX Text

1222AY



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

8910216



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

29



AutoCAD SHX Text

1311316



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

10.27





		Sheets and Views

		LUD REDESIGNATION 1-2500













        INFORMATION ONLY             November 25, 2021                                                              


                                                                                                                                                            


  THIS BY NO MEANS REPRESENTS AN OFFICIAL LAND SURVRY                                            403-626-3233 (T)                                           


                                                                                                                                                                           403-626-3234 (F) 
                                                                                                                                                            office@glenwood.ca 


                                                                                                                                                        


 


 


WE HAVE FOUND AND MARKED THE PROPERTY CORNER PINS. 


WE HAVE MEASURED THE 10.27 METERS. (33.694226 FEET) 



mailto:office@glenwood.ca






 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 261-2022 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 1 of 2 
 


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
BYLAW # 261-2022 


 


DRAFT Advertising Bylaw 
 
A BYLAW OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA,                                               


TO ESTABLISH ALTERNATIVE METHODS FOR ADVERTISING STATUTORY NOTICES. 


WHEREAS, pursuant to section 606 of the Municipal Government Act (MGA), a council must give 


notice of certain bylaws, resolutions, meetings, public hearings or other things by advertising in a 


newspaper or other publication circulating in the area, mailing or delivering a notice to every 


residence in the affected area or by another method provided for in a bylaw under section 606(1) of 


the Municipal Government Act (MGA). 


AND WHEREAS, pursuant to section 606.1(1) of the MGA, a council may, by bylaw provide for one 


or more methods, which may include electronic means, for advertising proposed bylaws, resolutions, 


meetings, public hearings and other things referred to in section 606; 


AND WHEREAS, the Council of the Village of Glenwood is satisfied that the advertising method set 


out in this Bylaw is likely to bring matters advertised by that method to the attention of substantially 


all residents in the area to which the bylaw, resolution or other thing relates or in which the meeting 


is to be held; 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Glenwood duly assembled enacts as follows: 


1. TITLE 


1.1 This bylaw shall be known as “Advertising Bylaw No. 261-2022.” 


2. ADVERTISING METHOD 


2.1 Any notice required to be advertised under section 606 of the MGA of a bylaw, resolution, 


meeting, public hearing or other thing shall be given by at least one of the methods below: 


 a. mailing notice to every residence in the area to which the item relates;  


 b. hand delivering notice to every residence in the area to which the item relates; or 


 c. publishing the notice in a newspaper or newsletter circulating within the Village. 


2.2 Notwithstanding the method selected in Section 2.1, all notices shall also be advertised using 


all of the methods specified below: 


 a. posting the notice prominently at the Village Office & Village Post Office, Store fronts 


on Main Avenue and Kiosk. 


 b. electronically posting the notice prominently on the official website of the Village; and 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 261-2022 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 2 of 2 
 


c. electronically posting the notice prominently on an official social media channel of the 


Village. 


3. ADVERTISING DATES & DURATION 


3.1 Pursuant to section 606(5) of the MGA, any notice given under Section 2.1 of this bylaw shall 


be given not less than 5 days prior to the bylaw, resolution, meeting, public hearing or other 


thing being advertised is scheduled to occur. 


a. notwithstanding the above, mailed notices under Section 2.1(a) shall be mailed not 


less than 12 days prior to the date of consideration. 


3.2 Notices under Section 2.2 of this bylaw shall be given not less than 14 days prior to the 


bylaw, resolution, meeting, public hearing or other thing being advertised is scheduled to 


occur, and remain in place until the date of consideration. 


4. SEVERABILITY 


4.1 Should any provision of this bylaw be found to be invalid; the invalid provision shall be 


severed and the remaining provisions of the bylaw shall remain in force. 


 


1. DATE OF COMMENCEMENT: 
 


1.1 This bylaw shall come into effect upon third and final reading. 
 


Read a FIRST time this ____day of _________, 2022. 
Read a SECOND time this ____ day of ________, 2022. 
Read a THIRD time and finally passed this ___day of ______, 2022. 
 
 
_____________________________                           ______________________________ 
Linda Allred      Carrie Kinahan 


Mayor       Chief Administrative Officer  








 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 262-2022 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 1 of 2 


 


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
BYLAW # 262-2022 


 
DRAFT Road Closure Bylaw 


 
A BYLAW OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA,                                              
FOR THE PURPOSE OF CLOSING TO PUBLIC TRAVELS PORTION OF PUBLIC ROADWAY TO 
CREATE TITLE IN THE NAME OF THE MUNICIPALITY FOR SUBSEQUENT DISPOSAL OF THE 
LAND THROUGH CONCOLIDATION WITH AN ADJACENT PIECE OF LAND IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION 22 OF THE MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT ACT, REVIXED STATUTES OF 
ALBERTA 200, CHAPTER M-26, AS AMENDED . 


WHEREAS, the land as hereafter described, as and as illustrated in the attached Schedule “A” are 
no longer required for public travel; and 


WHEREAS application has been made to Council to have the roadway closed; and 


WHEREAS, the council of the Village of Glenwood deems it expedient to provide for a bylaw for the 
purpose of closing to public travel certain roads, or portion thereof, situated in the said municipality, 
and thereafter creating title to same and disposing of same through consolidation with an adjacent 
piece of land; and  


WHEREAS, notice of the intention of Council to pass a bylaw has been given in accordance with 
Section 606 of the Municipal Government Act; and 
 
WHEREAS Council was not petitioned for an opportunity to be heard by any person claiming to be 
prejudicially affected by the bylaw.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Village of Glenwood in the Province 
of Alberta does hereby close to public travel for the purpose of creating title to the following 
described roadway for consolidation with an adjacent piece of land, subject to rights of access 
granted by other legislation: 
 
 PLAN 1222AY  
ALL THAT PORTION OF UNNAMED STREET LYING BETWEEN BLOCK 21 & 22 AND FORMING 
A PART OF SUBDIVISION PLAN ________  
CONTAINING 0.186 HECTARES (0.46 ACRES) MORE OR LESS  
EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS 
 
Rescinding Bylaw: 
 


(a) 259-2021 Road Closure  
 
Date of Commencement: 
 
This bylaw shall come into effect upon third and final reading. 
 
 
 







 


 
Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 262-2022 Mayor Initials:                     CAO Initials:                                            Page 2 of 2 


 


 READ a first time this 10 day of February, 2021. 
 
 
  
______________________________            ______________________________  
Mayor – Linda Allred                                      Chief Administrative Officer – Carrie Kinahan 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED this ____ day of ____________________2021.  
 
 
 
 


______________________________________  
 


Minister of Transportation  
<seal> 


 


READ a second time this ______ day of _______________, 2021. 


 


______________________________            ______________________________  
Mayor – Linda Allred                                      Chief Administrative Officer – Carrie Kinahan 
 


 


READ a third time and finally PASSED this ______ day of _______________, 2021. 


 


______________________________            ______________________________  
Mayor – Linda Allred                                      Chief Administrative Officer – Carrie Kinahan 
 








 1:56:25PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2022-Feb-8Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 1


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20220001 2022-01-05 EDWARDS, JANET


 20220002 2022-01-05 PETERSON, MARK


 20220003 2022-01-05 ALLRED, LINDA


 20220004 2022-01-05 LYBBERT, SANDY


 20220005 2022-01-05 LAW, STEVEN


 20220006 2022-01-10 ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION PAYMENT  19.85


IN173620 2021 LAND LOCATES  19.85 


 20220007 2022-01-10 ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD PAYMENT  1,956.12


Nov13-Dec14 POSTAGE, PHONE, OFFICE,COUNCIL  1,104.30 


 20220008 2022-01-10 LAW, STEVEN PAYMENT  71.98


2021-12-31 COUNCIL TRAVEL  71.98 


 20220009 2022-01-10 NEXTGEN AUTOMATION, DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  221.23


375287 PRINTER STAPLES  65.54 


377584 PHOTOCOPIES  155.69 


 20220010 2022-01-10 RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA, Canoe Procur PAYMENT  188.28


AB090345 OFFICE SUPPLIES  71.13 


AB090350 OFFICE SUPP.  105.30 


AB096652 OFFICE SUP  11.85 


 20220011 2022-01-10 SKOIEN PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION PAYMENT  5,617.50


INV-0765 2021 CFO SERVICES  5,617.50 


 20220012 2022-01-10 UFA CO-OPERATIVE LTD. PAYMENT  21.99


1604891093 DIESEL  21.99 


 20220013 2022-01-10 VAN DAN'S PAYMENT  267.65


2021-03 SHOP MAINTENACE  15.80 


2021-04 COUNCIL MISC  251.85 


 20220014 2022-01-10 White Feathers, Naatowayokaa (Kassidy) PAYMENT  100.00


halldep. Dec18 DEPOSIT REFUND- ETRANSFER-INV#20211150 100.00 


*** End of Report ***


Total  9,775.08








 1:23:00PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2022-Feb-8Accounts Payable Bank Reconciliation


Page 1 of 1


December Balance Shown on Bank Statement  757,237.17 


Add   Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Description AmountDeposit DateBatch #


BANK DEPOSIT  10029 2021-12-30  1,160.56 


BANK DEPOSIT  9976 2021-12-30  2,878.14 


Sub Total


 4,038.70 


 761,275.87 


Total Deposits Outstanding  4,038.70 


Less   Outstanding Cheques


Payee AmountCheque DateCheque #


NELSON, HARLEY  20210279 2021-08-11  152.55 


KOCH , BRYNNE  20210354 2021-10-11  140.14 


NELSON, HARLEY  20210357 2021-10-11  128.28 


ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION  20210403 2021-12-01  13.23 


HOLTHE, MILO  20210407 2021-12-01  41.30 


LYBBERT, SANDY  20210408 2021-12-01  100.30 


MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC.  20210410 2021-12-01  304.51 


TWINPRO INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS  20210416 2021-12-01  495.39 


ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION  20210419 2021-12-16  13.23 


ALBERTA SOUTHWEST REGIONAL ALLIANCE LTD. 20210420 2021-12-16  316.00 


AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD  20210421 2021-12-16  1,930.74 


CARDSTON COUNTY  20210422 2021-12-16  166.00 


CITY OF LETHBRIDGE- FIRE ADMINISTRATION  20210423 2021-12-16  304.94 


KINAHAN, CARRIE  20210426 2021-12-16  204.69 


OLSON, RICK & LEISA  20210428 2021-12-16  52.51 


 4,363.81 (4,363.81)Total Outstanding Cheques


And Adjustments


*** End of Report ***


Your Bank Balance Should Be


Your Reconciled Bank Balance Is


Difference


 756,912.06 


 0.00 


 756,912.06 








Ornmet't Rwna Rnctottrtr Snnwcns Couutsstow


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES


October L4, 2O2l'; 6:00 Pm
ORRSC Conference Room (3105 - 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge)


The Executive Committee Meeting of the Oldman River Regionalservices Commission was held on


Thursday, October L4,2O2!, at 6:00 pm, in the ORRSC Administration Building, as well as virtually via


7oom.


Attendance


StaffExecutive Committee:
Gordon Wolstenholme, Chairman


Jim Bester, Vice Chair


Richard Bengry
Doug MacPherson, RemotelY


lan Sundquist, Remotely


Don Anderberg, Remotely


Jennifer Crowson, Remotely


Lenze Kuiper, Chief Administrative Officer
Tara Cryderman, Executive Assistant


CARRIED


Chairman Wolstenholme called the meeting to order, the time being 6:04 pm.


1. Approval ofAgenda


Moved by: Richard Bengry


THAT the Executive Committee approve the October L4,202L Executive Committee


Meeting Agenda, as Presented


2. Approval of Minutes


Moved by: lan Sundquist


THAT the Executive Committee approve the September 9,2O2L Executive Committee Meeting


Minutes and the September 'J,4,202'J. Special Executive Committee Meeting Minutes, as


presented.
CARRIED


3. Business Arising from the Minutes


The committee was updated on the Covid-19 in the Workplace Policy, as well as the new phone


system.


2021 ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 28


October L4,2O2L







4. New Business


a. Budget Discussion


The draft budget was presented for initial review and comments. Overall, the membership fees
went up one percent due to increase in assessments. GIS membership is down, due to the loss
of some municipalities. There was a three percent salary increase presented.


The draft capital plan was presented for initial review and comments.


Moved by: Don Anderberg


THAT the Executive Committee for the Oldman River Regional Services Committee recommend
to the Board of Directors that the Draft Budgetfor 2o22 be approved as presented.


CARRIED


Moved by: Jim Bester


THAT the Executive Committee for the Oldman River Regional Services Committee recommend
to the Board of Directors that the 5 Year capital Plan be approved as presented.


CARRIED


5.


b. SubdivisionActivity


The Subdivision Activity to the month ending September 2O21-, was presented for information.


Accounts and Financial Statements


. Office Accounts


Moved by: Doug MacPherson


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Monthly Office Account for August 2021.


CARRIED


Moved by: Richard Bengry


THAT the Executive Committee approve the Payments and Credits for August 202L. 
CARRIED


a


b. FinancialStatements


Moved by: Jennifer Crowson


THAT the Executive committee approve the following Financial statements:


202L ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - page 29
September L4,2O2L







(i)


(ii)


(iii)


Balance Sheet
- As of August 31",2021
Compa rative I ncome Statement
- Actual to August 3L,2021,
Details of Account
- As ofAugust 3t,2O2I


CARRIED


Round Table Discussions


Committee members reported on various projects and activities in their respective municipalities.


Director's Report


The Director shared the following:
- Met with Town of Cardston CAO Jeff Shaw, and Planner Ryan Dyck, and toured the RBC Plant


- Attended a MD of Ranchland Council Meeting as a delegation with Planners Mike Burla and


Steve Harty
- Reviewed and prepared a new Assessment Review Board Bylaw and Agreement
- Conducted six (6) Assessment Review Board Hearings in the Town of Magrath, the Town of


Fort Macleod, and the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass


- The telephone system has been updated
- Ongoing staff meetings
- lnstituted a mandatory vaccination policy


Next Meeting - to be determined


Adjournment


Following all discussions, Chair Gordon Wolstenholme adjourned the meeting, the time being


7:26 pm.


6


7


8.


9.


hw'
CHAIR


CHIE E OFFICER


2021ORRSC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 30


September L4,2O2L












Alberta SouthWest Regional Economic Development Alliance 
International Economic Development Council (IEDC) Accredited Economic Development Organization (AEDO) 


Green Destinations Top 100 Sustainable Global Destinations and Top 3 Best of the Americas 
 


Box 1041 Pincher Creek AB T0K 1W0 
403-627-3373 (office) 403-627-0244 (cell)  
bev@albertasouthwest.com 
www.albertasouthwest.com 


Alberta SouthWest Bulletin January 2022 
Regional Economic Development Alliance (REDA) Update 


 


❖ Invest in Alberta/Xperience Alberta 2022 
The annual Economic Developers Alberta magazine will soon be in mailboxes. In the meantime, have a look at the 


digital version of this “two part” magazine!  


The REDAs and AlbertaSW communities have invested in being well-represented. 


https://invest-in-alberta.ca/digital-issue/ 
 


Here are just a few AlbertaSW highlights to look for!  
 


Invest in Alberta 


• REDAs: pages 16-21 


• Renewables: pages 32-37 


• Claresholm/MD Willow Creek: pages 68-69 


• Fort Macleod: page 76 
 


Xperience Alberta 


• Claresholm/MD Willow Creek: page 16  
• Peaks to Prairies: page 27 


• Lethbridge College: pages 48-49 


• RINSA: pages 63-64 
 


❖ Planning and possibilities for 2022 
At the January 5 meeting the Board reviewed some successes of the past year and identified priorities and 


opportunities related to issues of housing, industrial land development, red tape reduction, renewable energy 


development, cell phone coverage, local business support and tourism development. 
 


❖ Check your speed! 
Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) has a tool on its website that will enable you to test your internet speed! 


https://rmalberta.com/advocacy/toolkits-and-initiatives/cira-internet-performance-test/ 
 


❖ Check your community info! 
If you have time, visit www.albertasouthwest.com  and have a look at your community information on the website, 


especially in the “Move Here” and “Invest Here” sections. We can quickly update text as needed!  
 


❖ New federal PrairiesCan office established in southern Alberta 
Linda Erickson is the Senior Business Officer for the new Prairies Economic Development Canada (PrairiesCan) 


We also welcome the opportunity to work Selena McLean-Moore, who is now our provincial government Regional 


Economic Development Specialist for 3 REDAs: AlbertaSW, SouthGrow and Palliser Economic Partnership. 
 


❖ Economic Developers Alberta (EDA)  
Annual Xperience Conference and Leadership Summit 


April 6-8, 2022; mark your calendar and consider attending. 


More information at https://www.edaalberta.ca/xperience2022 
 



mailto:bev@albertasouthwest.com

http://www.albertasouthwest.com/

https://invest-in-alberta.ca/digital-issue/

https://rmalberta.com/advocacy/toolkits-and-initiatives/cira-internet-performance-test/

http://www.albertasouthwest.com/

https://www.edaalberta.ca/xperience2022






MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD JANUARY 6, 
2022, AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  
 
Board Members Present:    
Mike Nish – Village of Hill Spring    Paula Brown – Town of Cardston 
John Grainger – Town of Cardston (zoom)  Tom Nish – Cardston County 
Cam Francis - Cardston County   
                 
Others Present:  
Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
Spencer Olsen – Deputy Fire Chief                    
                               
Commenced at 5:00 p.m.  
 
Paula Brown in the chair.                                                        
 
Opening Prayer: Tom Nish 
  
AGENDA  
  
John Grainger moved to approve the agenda as amended.                              Carried  
  
MINUTES  


The minutes of the December 2, 2021, meeting was discussed.    


Cam Francis moved to accept the minutes of the December 2, 2021, meeting.                        Carried 
 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
Paula Brown advised that the swim passes are covered in the Authorities 2022 Budget.  
 
John Grainger inquired as to whether Danny Melvin had completed a list of hydrants that need fixed or 
replaced.  Danny advised that the fire crews will survey the fire hydrants next Thursday within the Town of 
Cardston and make a list of suggestions for repairs and relocations. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
  
Danny Melvin reported that the December Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 1 MVC, 2 false 
alarms, and 6 supports (smoke detectors, co alarm battery died, fires with a burn permit).  Danny is in the 
process of gathering By-laws from other fire departments regarding charging citizens for responding to false 
alarms. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that he visited with the Village of Hill Spring and is planning on putting in a power 
door and new tables for Mid River area. 







MINUTES CCES MEETING JANUARY 6, 2022 
 


2 
 


 
Danny Melvin reported the SCBA bottles have been tested and everything is in good working order.  The 
bottles on loan to Magrath will be returned soon. 
 
Danny Melvin advised that he has spoken with Magrath and they would like to change the response areas.  
Danny is suggesting that the south side of Highway 501 be the Authorities responsibility and the north be 
taken over by Magrath.  The Jefferson area may be taken over by the Authority as it takes Magrath a lot 
longer to respond.  Danny will be in further discussion with the Magrath Fire Department and will bring 
back the final decision to the board. 
 
Danny Melvin reported that he has not been able to meet with the Blood Tribe but will keep in contact with 
them. 
 
Danny Melvin advised the Fire Chief in Magrath is wanting to let his training lapse to perform (QMP) fire 
inspections within the Town of Magrath.  Danny is concerned that someone should be able to perform 
(QMP) fire inspections in their community.  The Cardston County board representatives will pass on the 
information. 
 
Tom Nish moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.                              Carried  
 
ADJOURNMENT  


Mike Nish moved to adjourn.                                       Carried  


Adjournment at 5:23 p.m. 


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 3, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County 
Emergency Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   





		MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD JANUARY 6, 2022, AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING

		MINUTES

		NEW BUSINESS

		ADJOURNMENT



































































Policing 


October the Alberta Government released the PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) feasibility study on 
an independent provincial police service. 


 


1. Estimated RCMP costs at $783 million 


2. We receive approximately $188 million in federal subsidies 


$783 - $188 = $595 million Albertan’s pay for RCMP 


3. Province estimates provincial police will cost $734 - $759 million (no federal funding) 


4. RCMP will still need to service Alberta 


The RCMP’s mandate, as outlined in Section 18 of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Act, is multi-


faceted and includes preventing and investigating crime; maintaining peace and order; enforcing 


laws; contributing to national security; ensuring the safety of state officials, visiting dignitaries and 


foreign missions; and providing vital operational support services to other police and law 


enforcement agencies within Canada and abroad. The RCMP is unique in the world since it is a 


national, federal, provincial, and municipal policing body. 


5. AUMA is conducting an in-depth analysis and will hold a members engagement event of Friday, Jan 


21 at 10 am. 


Questions 


 


6. Will municipalities have any say on policing matters including how many policr in each region? 


7. Will regions lose their officers when there is shortages in other areas like we do with our 


ambulances? 


8. How will provincial police be better than established RCMP? 


9. Will dispatched be centralized? 


10. What happens to vacant RCMP buildings? 


What we need 


1. We heard from the RCMP a few years ago at AUMA about what they needed to do their jobs better 


• The ability to work closer with those who handle mental health, addictions, homelessness 


and more. 


 


 



https://www.alberta.ca/provincial-police-service-engagement.aspx





National Police Federation (NPF) RCMP Police Public Consultation in Brooks on January 20th 


• 2020 Fair Deal Panel, provincial police ranked second from the bottom 


• October 2020 – UCP hired Price WaterHouse Coopers to compile report 


• October 2021, municipal election day, report was released 


• 80% who are policed by RCMP happy with RCMP 


• Polls suggest public want more resources for RCMP, decreased response times and assistance with 


opioid crisis 


• NPF has 38 in person sessions planned and 2 virtual sessions 


Community Policing 


• When it comes to community policing, Alberta government as been quoted as saying “they will just 


replicate what the RCMP has been doing” not taking into account the years of relationship building 


that has occurred. 


What if we cancel contract with RCMP and then try to go back years later? 


• Coaldale – used to be with RCMP then switched to Lethbridge police, at end of contract went back 


to RCMP but after provincial/federal contract signed so now they pay 100% RCMP costs. 


Recruitment & Retention 


• 15% RCMP expected to transfer to Provincial Police 


• 85% may be brand new recruitments (2500 police) 


o Inexperience 


o Loss of corporate knowledge 


o How are they going to recruit so many when Calgary had to go overseas to Europe and 


Scotland to keep up with recruitment 


o Victoria, BC is having so much trouble recruiting the 25 new hires they need they are now 


offer a $20,000 signing bonus 


o There is no provincial training for police available 


o Calgary and Edmonton are at capacity for their training facilities at 100 people 


o The job is more dangerous due to 


 Staff shortages 


 Opioid crisis 


 Weapons available 







Financials 


• City police in Alberta are paid more than the RCMP so if the province plans to pay comparable the 


cost will rise. 


• Site to view police salaries across Canada Home (therepository.ca) keep in mind numbers change 


based on new contract the renew throughout the year. 


 


What can we do right now? 


Model B has us adding only another 56 police officers to what exists right now with the RCMP, we would do 


this right now with a 30% rebate from the federal government 


One-time Transition Cost 


If you believe that…. 


Model A $366,107 


Model B $371,492 


 


Timeline 


In four years, time? 


With labour shortages? 


Without training facilities? 


 



https://therepository.ca/






Draft Agenda for Spring 2022 Municipal Leaders’ Caucus 


March 9 and 10, 2022 


Edmonton Conference Centre 


*Subject to Change* 


 


Wednesday, March 9 


8:00 a.m. Registration and Breakfast 


9:00 a.m. President’s Opening Remarks 


9:15 a.m. Minister of Municipal Affairs’ Remarks 


9:30 a.m. Ministers’ Dialogue Session I 


10:10 a.m. Break 


10:30 a.m. Ministers’ Dialogue Session II 


11:10 a.m. Premier’s Remarks 


11:30 p.m. Lunch 


12:30 p.m. Education/Engagement Session I – Alberta Provincial Police Service 


2:30 p.m. Break 


2:45 p.m. Requests for Decision 


3:15 p.m. Education/Engagement Session II - EMS 


4:15 p.m. Closing Remarks 


4:30 to 6:30 p.m. Networking session 


 


Thursday, March 10 


7:00 a.m. Registration and Breakfast 


8:00 a.m. Education/Engagement Session III – Municipal Financial Health and LGFF 


9:15 a.m. Alberta Municipalities President’s Report 


9:30 a.m. Executive Committee Dialogue Session 


10:00 a.m. Break 


10:15 a.m. Education/Engagement Session IV – Future of Municipal Governance 


11:30 a.m. Opposition Leader’s Remarks 


11:45 a.m. Closing Remarks 


12:00 p.m. Lunch 


 


 


 
 







